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From: Eric Pottenger

Sent: Friday, September 27, 2019 3:07 PM

To: Bruce Henry - Hanover Township
(administrator@hanovertownshipohio.org)

Cc: Scott Gardner; Adrienne Rice; Dale Schwieterman

Subject: 4004 Stahlheber Road Driveway

Attachments: Lawriter - ORC - 5589.06 Obstructing ditch, drain, or watercourse -

duty of superintendent_.pdf
Lawriter - ORC - 5571.09 Suits by board of township trustees_.pdf

Bruce,

A permit to widen an existing gravel driveway to 40-feet in width was issued by our office
February 21, 2019. The existing 12” diameter driveway culvert was also extended 24-feet to
accommodate this widening. Our inspector, Adrienne Rice, recently performed an inspection of
driveway located at 4004 Stahlheber Road. The driveway is now approximately 37-feet in width
and culvert pipe extended. Based on her observations, the permit conditions have been met.

As you know, during winter of 2018/2019 Hanover Township dealt with excess ice and excessive
erosion along Stahlheber Road. The property owner mounded and/or regraded a portion of their
property, thereby creating a diversion of water into the right-of-way. Knowing this diversion
occurred outside of the right-of-way and on private property, our office requested guidance from
Prosecutor’s Office to assist in resolving this matter. Since Stahlheber is a township maintained
road, it’s their opinion Hanover Township consider enforcement of statute §5589.06 Obstructing
ditch, drain, or watercourse — duty of superintendent. The statute clearly states a diversion of
water from property outside a public right-of-way is a wrongful act. Correcting this situation is at
the discretion of the Board of Township Trustees.

We recommend your road superintendent review the information provided and consider an
appropriate course of action.

Sincerely,
Eric

Eric J. Pottenger
Development Services Manager
pottengere@bceo.org

Butler County Engineer's Office
1921 Fairgrove Avenue (SR4)
Hamilton, OH 45011-1965
D:513.785.4121 | T:513.867.5744
M: 513.678.6325 | F:513.867.5849

(www.bceo LI
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5589.06 Obstructing ditch, drain, or watercourse - duty of
superintendent.

No person shall wrongfully obstruct any ditch, drain, or watercourse along, upon or across a public highway, or
divert any water from adjacent lands to or upon a public highway. Whenever the township highway
superintendent learns of any obstruction of any ditch, drain, or watercourse along, upon, or across a public
highway, or diversion of any water from adjacent lands to or upon a public highway, he shall notify the board of
township trustees, which shall cause written notice thereof to be personally served upon the person, firm, or
corporation, or upon any agent in charge of the property of the person, firm, or corporation causing such
obstruction or diversion. Notice may be served by a constable of the proper township or any person authorized
and deputed therefor by the board of township trustees, and shall describe and locate said obstruction or
diversion and direct its immediate removal. If the person, company, or corporation does not within five days from
the receipt of written notice proceed to remove such obstruction and complete the removal within a reasonable
time, the township highway superintendent, upon the order of the board of township trustees, shall remove the
obstruction. The expense incurred shall be paid in the first instance out of any money levied, collected, and
available for highway purposes and shall then be collected from the person, company, or corporation by civil
action by the board of township trustees, and paid into the highway fund of the township.

Effective Date: 10-01-1953 .
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5571.09 Suits by board of township trustees.

The board of township trustees may bring and maintain all suits involving an injury to any township road, ditch,
drain, or watercourse under the jurisdiction of such board and for the prevention of injury thereto. In case such
road, ditch, drain, or watercourse is under the jurisdiction of two or more boards of township trustees, such joint
board may bring and maintain such action. Such board or joint board may recover, by suit or otherwise, any real
estate or interest therein, legal or equitable, belonging to the township, or any money or other property due the
township.

Effective Date: 10-01-1953 .
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From: Eric Pottenger

Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2019 9:03 AM
To: Dale Schwieterman
Subject: FW: Erosion of roadway

What | received from Prosecutor’s Office regarding 4004 Stahlheber Road

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

From: Kevin Gerrity [mailto:gerritykj@butlercountyohio.org]
Sent: Wednesday, September 25, 2019 4:36 PM

To: Eric Pottenger

Cc: Dan Ferguson

Subject: Erosion of roadway

Eric, there is a method for a township to remedy and collect its costs for situations like these. | would
recommend looking to R.C. 5571.09 and R.C. 5589.06. It would seem that the Township should
approach the owner.
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From: Adrienne Rice

Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2019 3:59 PM
To: Eric Pottenger
Cc: Jamey Marcum
Subject: 4004 Stahlheber
Attachments: 5.jpeg
file.jpeg
filel.jpeg
file2.jpeg
file3.jpeg
filed.jpeg

Good afternoon Eric,

Please find the pictures | took yesterday at 4004 Stahlheber. As we discussed here is a quick
breakdown of all that | found.

1. Berms created by home owner is impeding planned flow of water which is putting the
existing 12” pipe in ROW over capacity. Mr. Eynon even stated that during major rain
events the flow is so great that it is washing out 2” gravel from driveway.

2. This overflow, as shown in the pictures attached, is once again beginning to erode under
the road at the driveway apron. It has also caused asphalt loss in one spot to the white
line. Homeowner said county helped by bringing in rock that he covered with road base
last fall or early winter. Upon inspection of pictures you gave me it actually looks like a
Hanover or Reily township truck (red) putting down base/rock. (Thanks, Jamey, good eye!)

3. The berms are extensive down the drive and there is also cut or eroded ditch toward the
end that shows evidence of heavy flow and perhaps even whirl pooling.

4. This is also causing major downstream erosion in the eastside ditch that homeowner is
attempting to remedy with large rocks. While it may help with keeping erosion from
happening around the pipe it will cause a site distance issue because he is unable to mow
or weed eat between rocks. It is also causing whirl pooling that is essentially drilling a deep
hole at the inlet pipe.

5. Recommended to home owner that the berms would have to be removed, ditches filled in
and a pipe installed under the drive approximately half way down the drive to direct the
water back to the original flow plan.

Review the pictures attached and contact me with any questions. | will be heading back out that
way tomorrow for another final and am happy to stop back by to get more picture particularly in
the rear of the property as we discussed this morning if needed.
Regards,

Adnienne Rice

Storm Water/ Permit Inspector
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ricea@bceo.org

Butler County Engineer's Office

1921 Fairgrove Avenue (SR4)

Hamilton, OH 45011-1965

D:513.785.4119 | M:513.571.7775 | F:513.867.5849
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From: Eric Pottenger

Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2019 9:01 AM
To: Dale Schwieterman

Subject: FW: Drainage Diversion

Attachments: Photographs.pdf

What | sent Dan...

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

(www.bceo LX)

From: Eric Pottenger

Sent: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 10:03 AM
To: Dan Ferguson

Cc: Adrienne Rice

Subject: Drainage Diversion

Dan,

During winter of 2018/2019 the Hanover Township Trustees notified our office that the owner of
4004 Stahlhaber Road regraded a portion of their property and diverted runoff into roadside
ditch. The owner created an earthen mound and ditch redirecting runoff, that used to flow across
his driveway and front yard, and directed that water into the roadside ditch of stahlhaber Road. A
majority of the work/diversion occurs outside of the road right-of-way. As you can see from the
attached images, the diversion of water eroded his driveway and undermined a portion of
Stahlhaber Road. To prevent additional damage to pavement and icing of roadway, the township
placed stone where runoff had washed-out soil and jeopardized the road.

Throughout the spring and summer of 2019, erosion continued to occur along Stahlhaber Road
due to this diversion. With colder weather approaching the township is concerned the diversion
will create a similar situation as last winter. Hanover Township would rather address this problem
before winter months arrive. To date, the property owner has been uncooperative in removing
the diversion or in resolving this matter, with both Hanover Township or County Engineer’s Office.
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Since this portion of Stahlhaber Road is maintained by Hanover Township, who is required to
approach the property owner; Hanover Township or County Engineer’s Office?

Is there a statute or section of Ohio Revised Code which allows a Township or County to remedy
diversions of runoff outside of the right-of-way?
If so, how can Township or County recover its costs?

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
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